
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., January 24, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Tuesday, January 17, 2023 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, January 22, 2023 
 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – December 16, 2022   

 

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S) 

                                                        

IV.    NEW BUSINESS  

1. Change Order No. 1 .………………………………………………………………………          1 - 2 

IFB#GHURA-05-26-2022-AMPs 2, 3 & 4; Renovation of 13 Public  

Housing Units 

2. Change Order No. 1 ………………………………………………………………………           3 - 7 

IFB#GHURA-09-02-2022-SI; Site Improvements for AMP1 

3. Travel for NSPIRE Training ………………………………………………………….          8 - 12 

4. Request for Conflict of Interest Waiver Submission …………………….        13 – 47 

   

V.   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1.  Project Updates 

2. Division Updates  

                                                                                                                                  

 VI.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. HR Item: Executive Management Performance Evaluations for:   

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due on January 08, 2023  

(Initial Evaluation) 

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due on February 22, 2023  

   (Initial Evaluation) 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, February 13, 2023 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

 
 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT  

 



GUAM
 DAILY PO

ST •  TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023
21CLASSIFIEDS

EMCE Consulting
Engineers, Inc.

Email Resume to:
hr@emceconsulting.com

Electrical CADD 
Operator

• Proficiency with AutoCAD 2014 or higher

Junior Electrical 
Engineer

• Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering

Electrical Engineer
• Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical Engineering

• 2+ yrs. experience as Electrical 

John M. Benavente, P.E.
General Manager

GUAM POWER AUTHORITY
ATURIDÅT ILEKTRESEDÅT GUÅHAN

P.O. BOX 2977 • HAGÅTÑA, GUAM U.S.A. 96932-2977
Telephone Nos. 671-648-3054/55 or Facsimile 671-648-3165Joseph T. Duenas

CCU Chairman

This notice is paid for by the GUAM POWER AUTHORITY CIP FUNDS
Public Law 26-12  

INVITATION FOR BID
FINAL ADVERTISEMENT

Bid package may be picked up at the GPA Procurement Office, 1ST Floor, Gloria B. Nelson Public Service Building, 688 Route 15, Mangilao, Guam 96913. 
All interested firms should register with GPA's Procurement Division to be able to participate in the bid. Please call our office at 1 (671) 648-3054 / 3055 
to register. Registration is required to ensure that all "Amendments and Special Reminders" are communicated to all bidders throughout the bid process. 
Procurement instructions are posted on the Authority’s web site at https://go.opengovguam.com/bids/available/gpa.

BID NO.:
GPA-022-23

DUE DATE:
01/24/2023

TIME:
11:00 A.M.

DESCRIPTION:
Siemens SP5 SCADA EMS Storage Replacement

CAMACHO CALVO LAW GROUP LLC
VINCENT C. CAMACHO 
vcamacho@camachocalvo.law
356 E. Marine Corps Drive, Suite 201
Hagåtña, Guam 96910
Tel No. 671.472.6813
Fax No. 671.477.4375

Attorneys for Administrator
JON AGUON 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE OF
FRANCIS JAMES HEMSING DUNGCA,

Deceased.

PROBATE CASE NO. PR0219-22

NOTICE TO CREDITORS

     NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by JON AGUON, 
Administrator of the Estate of FRANCIS JAMES 
HEMSING DUNGCA, deceased, to the creditors of, and 
all persons having claims against said Estate or 
against said Decedent, that within sixty (60) calendar 
days after the date of the first publication of this 
notice, they either file them with necessary vouchers 
in the Office of the Clerk of the Superior Court of 
Guam, or exhibit them with the necessary vouchers to 
said Administrator or his attorneys of record, 
Camacho Calvo Law Group, LLC, 356 E. Marine Corps 
Drive, Suite 201, Hagåtña, Guam 96910, the same 
being the place for the transaction of the business of 
said Estate.

DATED: January 9, 2023.

CAMACHO CALVO LAW GROUP LLC
/s/ VINCENT C. CAMACHO

Attorneys for Administrator
JON AGUON

Office of the Attorney General
Leevin Taitano Camacho
Attorney General of Guam
Juvemile Division
590 S. Marine Corps Drive, Suite 706 • 
ITC Building - Tamuning, Guam 96913 • USA
Tel: (671) 475-3406 • Fax: (671) 475-3343
www.oagguam.org
Attorney for the People of Guam 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE INTEREST OF

G.A. (DOB: 11/24/2013), A.G. (DOB: 11/24/2013),
P.A. (DOB: 08/04/2017), and B.Q. (DOB:05/29/2019),

Minors,
JUVENILE CASE NO. 152-22

SUMMONS
TO: GAVIN BABAUTA, Biological Father for the Minors 

G.A. (DOB: 11/24/2013), and A.G. (DOB: 11/24/13)
Address Unknown                                                                      

 You are hereby summoned to appear via Zoom before the 
HONORABLE LINDA L. INGLES, at the Judiciary of Guam, Superior 
Court of Guam, 120 West O’Brien Drive, Hagatna, Guam, for a court 

hearing on:

TUESDAY. JANUARY 24, 2023 AT 4:30 P.M.
Zoom meeting ID: 716-711-9213 / Password: 76504
YOU MAY BE HELD IN CONTEMPT IF YOU FAIL TO APPEAR

ON THE DATE SET FORTH IN THIS SUMMONS.
A copy of a Person in Need of Services (PINS) petition is attached hereto 
regarding the above-named minor. The Judge, will, at this time of this 

hearing, inform you as to the status of the above-named minor and will 
appoint an attorney for you, if you need.

YOUR PARENTAL AND CUSTODIAL  DUTIES  AND RIGHT CONCERING
THE CHILD WHO IS THE SUBJECT OF THE ATTACHED PETITION MAY 
BE TERMINATED BY AWARD OF PERMANENT CUSTODY IF YOU FAIL 

TO APPEAR ON THE DATE SET FORTH IN THIS SUMMONS.
Dated: December 30, 2022

Clerk, Superior Court of Guam
By: /s/ Mason P. Sayama

APPLY NOW
26 - MAINTENANCE ENGINEER                               $13.94 PER HR. 
Must have two years of experience as an HVAC Mechanic or Carpenter
Perform work involving skills of two or more maintenance or craft occupations to keep machines, mechanical equipment, or the 
structure of a hotel facility. Duties will involve pipe fitting; HVAC maintenance; insulating; welding; machining; carpentry; 
repairing electrical or mechanical equipment; installing, aligning, and balancing new equipment; and repairing buildings, 
floors, or stairs. Diagnose mechanical problems and determine how to correct them, checking blueprints, repair manuals, or 
parts catalogs, as necessary.
Install equipment to improve the energy or operational efficiency of residential or commercial buildings,
repairing ventilation and air conditioning systems and equipment. Fabricate or repair counters, benches,
partitions, or other wooden structures.

Benefits:  Roundtrip airfare for off-island hire; food & lodging at $80.00 per week; local transportation to/fr jobsites.

The job offer meets all EEO requirements, and initiates a temporary placement. The recruitment associated with this job offer is 
closely monitored by the Department of Labor. Qualified, available and willing U.S. workers are highly encouraged to apply. 
Should you qualify for the job and are not hired, you may appeal with the Department of Labor who will independently review 
the matter.

For complete job duties, apply in person at American Job Center
414 W. Soledad Avenue, Suite 300 GCIC Building, Hagatna, Guam

Or apply online at www.hireguam.com; Enter Keyword : 2023-017.

PUBLIC NOTICE

Topic: GHURA BOC Mtg Tues., January 24, 2023 @12PM
Time: Jan 24, 2023 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85967804438?pwd=Um43U3Ftcnl4Z0ZtdEF3TFBlMXQ2dz09
Meeting ID: 859 6780 4438  •  Passcode: 317402

Watch Youtube Live Stream: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag

AGENDA:
I. ROLL CALL
II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – December 16, 2022
IV. NEW BUSINESS

1. Change Order No. 1; IFB#GHURA-05-26-2022-AMPs 2, 3 & 4; Renovation of 13 Public Housing Units
2. Change Order No. 1; IFB#GHURA-09-02-2022-SI; Site Improvements for AMP1
3. Travel for NSPIRE Training
4. Request for Con�ict of Interest Waiver Submission

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
1. Project Updates
2. Division Updates

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. Courtesy Reminder - HR Item: Executive Management Performance Evaluations for:

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due on January 08, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)
• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due on February 22, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting – Tuesday, February 13, 2023 @ 12:00 p.m.
VII. ADJOURNMENT

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations, please contact 

Chief Planner –Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701. 
This advertisement was paid for by GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan

117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 · Fax: (671) 300-7565 · TTY: (671) 472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org
EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY
Joshua F. Tenorio

Lieutenant Governor of Guam

1962

• GUAM HO
US

IN
G A

ND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY • 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam

GHURA

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Tuesday, January 24, 2023 at 12:00 PM.

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.



GU
AM

 D
AI

LY
 P

O
ST

 •
 S

UN
DA

Y, 
 JA

NU
AR

Y  
22

,  2
02

3
20 CLASSIFIEDS

Topic: GHURA BOC Mtg Tues., January 24, 2023 @12PM
Time: Jan 24, 2023 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85967804438?pwd=Um43U3Ftcnl4Z0ZtdEF3TFBlMXQ2dz09
Meeting ID: 859 6780 4438  •  Passcode: 317402

Watch Youtube Live Stream: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag

AGENDA:
I. ROLL CALL
II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – December 16, 2022
IV. NEW BUSINESS

1. Change Order No. 1; IFB#GHURA-05-26-2022-AMPs 2, 3 & 4; Renovation of 13 Public Housing Units
2. Change Order No. 1; IFB#GHURA-09-02-2022-SI; Site Improvements for AMP1
3. Travel for NSPIRE Training
4. Request for Con�ict of Interest Waiver Submission

V. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT
1. Project Updates
2. Division Updates

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS
1. Courtesy Reminder - HR Item: Executive Management Performance Evaluations for:

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due on January 08, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)
• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due on February 22, 2023 (Initial Evaluation)

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting – Tuesday, February 13, 2023 @ 12:00 p.m.
VII. ADJOURNMENT

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org.
For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations, please contact 

Chief Planner –Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701. 
This advertisement was paid for by GHURA

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority
Aturidat Ginima’ Yan Rinueban Siudat Guahan

117 Bien Venida Avenue, Sinajana, GU 96910
Phone: (671) 477-9851 · Fax: (671) 300-7565 · TTY: (671) 472-3701

Website: www.ghura.org
EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY
Joshua F. Tenorio

Lieutenant Governor of Guam

1962

• GUAM
 HO

US
IN

G A
ND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY • 

Lourdes A. Leon Guerrero
Governor of Guam

GHURA

Board of Commissioners Meeting
Tuesday, January 24, 2023 at 12:00 PM.

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom.

JOB OPENING
ACCOUNTANT 

(OES/SOC CODE: 13-2011.00)
JOB DUTIES:

Applies principles of accounting to analyze �nancial information and prepare �nancial reports: Compiles and analyzes �nancial 
information to prepare entries to accounts, such as general ledger accounts, documenting business transactions. Analyses �nancial 
information detailing assets, liabilities, and capital, and prepares balance sheets, pro�t and loss statements, and other reports to 
summarize current and projected company �nancial position, using a calculator or computer. Prepares and �les U. S. income tax 
returns for various legal entities, such as Form 1040, 1041, 1065, 1120, 1120S, 990, etc.  Audits contracts, orders, and vouchers, and 
prepares reports to substantiate individual transactions prior to settlement. May establish, modify, document, and coordinate the 
implementation of accounting and accounting control procedures. May devise and implement a manual or computer-based system for 
general accounting. May direct and coordinate activities of other accountants and clerical workers performing accounting and 
bookkeeping tasks.  

QUALIFICATION: 
 A bachelor’s degree in Accounting (may be foreign equivalent) and minimum 2-year experience in the similar position. 

PAY RATE:
$34,883.00/Year

Any person may provide documentary evidence bearing on the applications to the Certifying O�cer of the U. S. Department of Labor 
at the following address:

The geographic area of employment shall be at 744 N. Marine Corps Dr., EWBC Unit 113, Tamuning, Guam 96913. Please send resume 
to Faith Corporation, P. O. Box 10629, Tamuning, Guam 96931. Contact Andrew Park/General Manager at andrew@parkso�ce.com

Certifying O�cer
Atlanta National Processing Center
Harris Tower, 233 Peachtree Street, Suite 410
Atlanta, GA 30303

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE

OF
GABRIELA BENAVENTE PEREZ,

Deceased.
PROBATE CASE NO. PR0028-97

NOTICE OF RENDERING ACCOUNT FOR FINAL 
SETTLEMENT AND PETITION FOR DISTRIBUTION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Betty Ann Wusstig-Perez and 
Christine P. Hernandez, Co-Administratrix of the Estate of 
Gabriela Benavente Perez, deceased, has rendered and 
presented for final settlement, and filed in said court, his 
account of such administration, together with a petition for the 
final distribution of said estate, and that on January 31, 2023 at 
the hour of 11:00am, of said day, in the Superior Court of 
Guam, Guam Judicial Center, Hagåtña, Guam, has been set for 
the settlement of said account and the hearing of the petition 
for distribution, and all persons interested in said estate are 
notified then and there to appear and show cause, if any they 
have, why the said account should not be settled and allowed, 
and why distribution of said estate should not thereupon be 
immediately made to the persons entitled thereto without 
further notice of proceedings.

Reference is hereby made to the said account and petition.
Dated: December 29, 2022 .
May appear via Zoom:
Enter Meeting ID: 752 425 5848
Enter Password: JARB

DANIELLE T. ROSETE
CLERK, SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM

BY: /s/ YVONNE L. CRUZ
DEPUTY CLERK

LAW OFFICE OF PETER F. PEREZ
Suite 802, DNA Building
238 Archbishop Flores Street
Hagåtña, Guam 96910
Telephone No.: (671) 475-5055/6
Facsimile No.: (671) 477-5445

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE

OF

ROY EDWARD TEDTAOTAO CRUZ,
Deceased,

BY
MELISSA FLORES,
Administratrix.

PROBATE CASE NO. PRO230-22

NOTICE TO CREDITORS
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the undersigned, 
attorneys for the Administratrix of the Estate of Roy 
Edward Tedtaotao Cruz, Deceased, to the creditors of, 
and all persons having claims against said Estate or 
against deceased, that within two (2) months after 
the first publication of this Notice, they either file 
them with the necessary vouchers in the office of the 
Clerk of the Superior Court of Guam, or exhibit them 
with necessary vouchers to the Berman Law Firm, 
Suite 503, Bank of Guam Bldg., 111 Chalan Santo, 
Hagatna, Guam 96910, the same being the place for 
the transaction of the said estate.

 Dated this 18th day of January, 2023

BERMAN LAW FIRM
Attorneys for Administrators 

MELISSA FLORES
   By: /s/  FRANKIE T. PEREZ, JR. ESQ.

BERMAN LAW FIRM
Suite 503, Bank of Guam Bldg.
111 Chalan Santo Papa
Hagåtña, Guam 96910
Telephone No.: (671) 477-2778
Facsimile No.: (671) 477-4366

RETAIL SALES ASSISTANT
Must have ABC card and Health Certificate

SSOONNYY’S BY THE BAY, UMATAC
671 777 4897

NOW HIRING IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM
IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE

 OF 
JOHN B. CARINO AND BERTHA B. CARINO

Decedents.

PROBATE CASE NO. PR0073-22

AMENDED
NOTICE OF HEARING 

 
THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW. YOU ARE NOT 
REQUIRED TO APPEAR IN COURT UNLESS YOU 

DESIRE.

1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Richard L. 
Johnson has filed a Return of Sale and Petition for 
Confirmation of Sale.

2. A hearing on the petition will be heard by online 
remote appearance on Wednesday, February 1, 2023 
at 9:50 a.m.

3. To attend or to participate in the hearing, go to 
https://guamcourts-org.zoom.us and enter Meeting 
ID: 864 4387 2213 and Passcode:JEMI. You may also 
call in for the hearing; you can call into the courtroom 
at 671-300-6703 at the designated hearing time. For 
connectivity issues, you may contact Eathan Cruz at 
(671) 475 - 3106 or email efcruz@guamcourts.org

Dated: January 10, 2023

DANIELLE T. ROSETE
Clerk of Court

/s/ ALICE B. MENDOZA
Courtroom/Chamber Clerk 

Guam Society of Professional Engineers
Statement of Activities 

Jan 1, 2022 to Dec 31, 2022
Income
   Dues
   Fundraising
   (Marquis, Golf Tournament)
   Grants
   Other
            Total Income

Expenses
   Event (MATHCOUNTS)
   Mathcounts Team Travel 
   (airfare, stipend, rooms)
   Fundraising (Golf 
Tournament)
   Meetings
   Operating Expenses
   Donations to other 
Non-Profits
           Total Expenses

Guam Society of Professional Engineers
Statement of Financial Position

As of Dec 31, 2022
ASSETS
   Current Assets
             Cash in bank
TOTAL ASSETS
   
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
   Equity
            Opening Balance Equity
            Net Income (Loss)
   Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THE ABOVE
STATEMENT IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

ELIZABETH C. GAYLE
TREASURER

1,476.00
   21,540.00

   
4,000.00
   280.00

  $ 27,296.00
   
      

 $ 4,294.24          
 9,822.15

  
7,040.00

  29.67
187.00

  500.00
   $ 21,873.06

$ 5,422.94           

   
$ 37,286.39             

37,286.39
   

 
31,863.45

           5,422.94
   37,286.39
$ 37,286.39



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 1 of 9 
 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., December 16, 2022 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the                                       

Bylaws of the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board 

meeting was called to order at 12:32 P.M., Friday, December 16, 2022, at the 

GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He 

indicated that 6 members of the Board of Commissioners were present, representing 

a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 

 
PRESENT: 
Dr. John Rivera, Chairman  
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner  
Emilia Rice, Commissioner  
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner  
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner  
 
ABSENT: 
Monica Guzman, Vice Chairwoman  
Anisia Delia, Commissioner  
 
LEGAL COUNSEL: 
None present 

 
MANAGEMENT & STAFF: 
Elizabeth Napoli, Executive Director  
Fernando Esteves, Deputy Director 
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant 
Frances Danieli, Fiscal Controller 
Sonny Perez, AE Manager 
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator 
Katherine Taitano, CDBG Manager 
 
PUBLIC:  
None present in person or via zoom 
 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Friday, December 09, 2022 
 2nd Printing – Wednesday, December 14, 2022 
 ACKNOWLEDGED by Chairman Rivera 
 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – November 22, 2022  

[061/22] Commissioner Corpus moved to approve the board meeting minutes of 

November 22, 2022, subject to corrections. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. 

There were no objections by the other board members. Motion passed, subject to any 

corrections.  



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 2 of 9 
 

                                                        

IV.   NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-006, a Resolution Approving the Above-Step 

Recruitments for the Accountant II Positions (FISCAL Division) 

 

[062/22] Executive Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Read aloud Resolution No. FY2023-006 

• Mr. Bedrick Briones and Ms. Gi Young Kim Reyes submitted requests to 

Executive Management and the GHURA Board of Commissioners for 

consideration of an above the minimum step recruitment for the classified 

positions of Accountant II based on exceptional qualification 

• Given the critical need and severe staffing shortages in the fiscal Division to 

fill these positions immediately, the consideration was BOC approved 

• Since GHURA HR has completed the required disclosures and transparency 

requirements, Executive Management now seeks approval from the GHURA 

BOC for an above the minimum step requirement for the (2) Accountant IIs 

based on recruitment difficulty and exceptional qualifications; 

• Exceptional qualifications of Mr. Bedrick B. Briones: 

1. Worked in private (banking industry) and military sectors; 

2. Introduced process of “digital signature features” eliminating the 

need to print hard copy checks; 

3. Upgraded the bank prepaid expense worksheets and reduced 

preparation time by 50%; 

4. Promoted to Investment Officer after only (1) year; 

5. As Investment Officer, processed over $30 million per month of wire 

transfers (error free); 

6. Journal entries over $1 billion work of investments and automated 

many processes that increased the bank’s overall efficiencies; 

7. With Mr. Briones joining the fiscal team, GHURA expects him to 

improve the level of efficiency and effectiveness of the Fiscal Division 

• Exceptional qualifications of Ms. Gi Young Reyes: 

1. Worked in private and military sectors; 

2. Internal audit assurance practice; 

3. Fraud investigation; 

4. 3–5-year budget and business plans; 

5. Individual, corporate, and non-profit organization tax and; 

6. With Ms. Reyes joining the fiscal team, GHURA expects her to 

improve the level of efficiency and effectiveness of the Fiscal Division 

• Management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits (i.e., 

retirement, holidays, annual/sick leave, etc.) is fair and respectfully requests 

an above step recruitment of Mr. Bedrick Briones and Ms. Gi Young Kim 

Reyes, MG4-7(E), $55,560 pa; $26.71 p/hr; and  



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 3 of 9 
 

• The GHURA board recognizes that it has the discretionary authority to go 

below or beyond management’s recommendations (i.e., MG4-2(A), 

$39,921.00 p/a; $19.19 p/hr through MG4-10F, $66,809.00 p/a; $32,12 p/h 

– maximum), but supports management’s request for the above-step 

recruitment; 

• Funding for this position is available from COCC funds; 

• In consideration of the applicants’ exceptional knowledge and experience, 

the GHURA Board of Commissioners grants the above-step recruitment for: 

1. Mr. Bedrick Briones, MG4-7(E) p/a; $55,560.00 p/a; $26.71 p/hr;  

2. Ms. Gi Young Kim Reyes, MG4-7(E), $55,560.00 p/a; $26.71 p/hr 

Chairman Rivera indicated that the fiscal/finance division has had many discussions 

regarding the need to fill those positions and the shortage of individuals with the skill sets in 

these professions. He inquired about whether Dr. Kim Bersamin, HR Administrator, had 

vetted both applicants. Dr. Bersamin confirmed that she has. She thanked the board for 

accommodating the request and added that GHURA looks forward to moving ahead more 

efficiently and effectively with a team full of the skill sets that it has now. She respectfully 

requested the board’s support on the above step recruitment.  

There was nothing further.  

[063/22] Commissioner Sanchez motioned to approve Resolution No. FY2023-006, 

approving the Above-Step Recruitments for the Accountant II Positions (FISCAL 

Division). Commissioner Ishizaki seconded the motion. There were no objections by 

the other board members. Motion passed for FY2023, Resolution No. FY2023-006 for 

Above-Step Recruitment for the Accountant II positions unanimously.  

2. Resolution No. FY2023-007, a Resolution Approving the Above-Step Recruitment for 

the Engineer II Position (Temporary Position) (A/E Division) 

 

[064/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

• Read aloud Resolution No. 2023-007 

• On 11/16/2022, the authority offered Mr. Miguel T. Fernandez, a temporary 

position to the Engineer II position 

• Mr. Fernandez has requested an above-step recruitment salary to $68,000 

per annum 

• The BOC acknowledges both the recruitment difficulty and Mr. Fernandez’s 

exceptional qualifications and the critical need for the position 

• Exceptional qualification of Mr. Miguel T. Fernandez are as follows: 

a) Republic of the Philippines Government Certifications 

Construction Project Management 

Republic of the Philippines, Department of Trade & Industry 

Construction Manpower Development Foundation 

 



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 4 of 9 
 

Association of Safety Practitioners of the Philippines, Inc. 

(ASPPI Member) 

Republic of the Philippines, Department of Labor Employment 

Bureau of Working Conditions, Intramurus, Manila 

 

Occupational Safety & Health Practitioner 

Republic of the Philippines, Department of Labor and 

Employment 

Bureau of Working Conditions; Intramuros, Manila 

 

b) US Federal Certifications 

NAVFAC Construction Quality Management 

Naval Facilities Engineering Command 

OSHA 40 EM 385-1-1 

Conducted by: OSH SOLUTIONS GUAM on Feb. 13, 2020 

Graduation from the Manuel L. Quezon University with a Bachelor of 

Science in Civil Engineering in March 1987 

 

c) Possesses over (37) years of private sector engineering experience; 

(13) years of various private sector experience on Guam;  

Over (20) years of experience as Project Engineer/Manager in the 

Philippines; (1) year in Saudi Arabia. 

 

• In consideration of both recruitment difficulty and exceptional qualifications, the 

BOC wishes to compensate Mr. Fernandez at the above the minimum step for the 

temporary position of Engineer II at pay grade NG4 Step 9(F), which is $68, 271 per 

annum 

• Funding for the above step recruitment is available under federal funds 

• GHURA requests that the BOC, in accordance with Title 4 of the Guam Code 

Annotated §6205, grant the above-step temporary position of Engineer II at pay 

grade NG4 Step 9(F), which is $68, 271 per annum. 

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about whether Mr. Fernandez was a licensed professional 

engineer. Mrs. Bersamin stated that Mr. Fernandez did not possess the Professional Engineer 

license. Deputy Director Esteves added that what GHURA was looking for was for someone to 

be out in the field providing knowledgeable feedback to the engineering department to 

ensure the project management side of it was consistently moving forward. 

Commissioner Sanchez asked about the timeframe of the contract and whether the position 

was a temporary one. Mrs. Bersamin stated that the position was a temporary one and was 

equivalent to an “at will” employee. He inquired about whether the temporary position 

would open up the possibility for a permanent position. Mrs. Bersamin stated that it would 

depend on the budget and going through the Merit System. She added that the timeframe 



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 5 of 9 
 

would need to include getting the team up to speed, complete the project and complete 

another assessment of the staffing level requirements and go back to the board if there is a 

need to address it.  

Commissioner Ishizaki inquired about the total number of engineers in the AE Division. Mr. 

Sonny Perez, AE Manager, stated that Michael Racuyal was the only AE engineer. However, 

the staff includes excellent building inspectors, Mr. Andrew Manglona and Mr. Robert Hess. 

Mr. Manglona also does computer aid drafting and is well versed of the standards.  

Chairman Rivera indicated that he believed that the above step would help with some of 

GHURA’s critical pending cases and timeliness issues. Mrs. Bersamin added that it may also 

help with MOD projects, as well.  

[065/22] Commissioner Ishizaki moved to approve the above step recruitment for the 

Engineer II position, which is a temporary position for Resolution no. FY2023-007. 

Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. There were objections by other board 

members. The motion passed.  

3. Intent to Award, IFB#GHURA-COCC-022-010; Banking Services 

 

[066/22] Director Elizabeth Napoli stated the following: 

• GHURA is requesting the approval from the Board of Commissioners to move 

forward with the intent to award Bank of Guam for banking services.  

• Bank of Guam was the only bidder that submitted a proposal 

• RFP Solicitation Start date, October 21, 2022. Second Advertisement on 

October 26, 2022 

• On October 27, 2022- an email was sent to banking institutions available 

online to inform them of the non-mandatory pre-bid conference scheduled 

for October 28, 2022 at 10am.  

• There were no representatives from other banking institutions at the pre-bid 

conference 

• RFP was reviewed by procurement staff and the controller of Fiscal Division 

for responsiveness and completeness 

• Evaluation committee initially reviewed and scored the sole bidder’s 

proposal without cost and gave a final score that was deemed reasonable 

• On December 13, 2022, a letter was sent to HUD for approval due to sole bid 

submission 

• Response from HUD was to PROCEED with Intent to Award 

There were no questions by the commissioners.  

[067/22] Commissioner Sanchez motioned to approve Intent to Award IFB#GHURA-

COCC-022-010; Banking Services. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. There 

were no objections by the other board members. Motion was passed.  



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 6 of 9 
 

 

 

4.    Umatac Baseball Field Rehab. Project – Change Order 

 

[068/22] Director Napoli stated the following: 

• This is a request to approve the change order to the subject contract and 

project GHURA 099-26-2017-CDBG Infratech Intl. LLC to rehabilitate the 

Sinajana and Umatac Baseball Fields 

• Scope of work included: Renovating, regrading existing playing fields, 

restrooms, replacement of fencing and backstops, adding swales for 

stormwater control, and increasing automobile parking stalls.  

• GHURA released and closed the bid on Oct. 26, 2017 

• Infratech International, LLC was determined to be the lowest and most 

qualified bidder 

• GHURA issued a base contract for $810,000 and an NTP to Infratech on May 

14, 2018 for both Umatac and Sinajana Baseball Fields 

• Umatac Baseball field timeline included (3) change orders: $200,00 was for 

the purchase of additional lighting, $46,970 was to install backfill needed to 

stabilize the existing playing field and $32,000 to install a permittable field 

lighting electrical system analysis 

• Umatac Baseball field is considered substantially complete pending utility 

installation, power and water 

• GHURA has partnered with GPA and GWA to coordinate their efforts to 

minimize the time required towards meeting the administrative permit 

requirements 

• GPA has notified Infratech of application requirements to avoid delays in 

scheduling final inspections. Possible charges may incur during the 

application process 

• GHURA has offered Infratech an equitable change in its contract when costs 

become known 

• Pre-renovated Umatac Baseball field was connected to a nearby water meter 

that supplied water to the restroom, for reasons unknown, the meter and 

piping infrastructure were removed  

• Infratech attempted to locate the infrastructure to connect new restroom 

water lines, but it was non-existent.  

• GHURA, GWA, and Infratech decided to install infrastructure and connect to a 

nearby water hydrant to supply water to the baseball field restrooms. 

• Recommendation: GHURA’s AE submits a government estimate of $8,000 

• Infratech is currently sourcing materials and GWA has committed to supply 

materials that Infratech may not be able to find on island.  



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 7 of 9 
 

• GHURA recommended to approve change order number (4) to the contract 

and any additional costs that can be subject to an equitable change in the 

contract. 

• Mr. Sonny Perez, AE Manager, stated the following updates for the Umatac 

Baseball field: 

1. Project is at 97% complete 

2. Currently, Mayor Quinata is keeping up the facility 

3. Power poles are up and restrooms and fences are completed 

4. Parking lot is just about complete 

5. GHURA has requested that Infratech install the additional 

infrastructure to tie into the system next to the water hydrant 

Chairman Rivera asked how often GHURA experienced a situation where infrastructure was 

supposed to be there, but was not. Mr. Perez indicated that he had experienced this (2) other 

times, but added that the facility is old and records may have been destroyed or misplaced.  

Commissioner Ishizaki added that the cost estimate was reasonable. He inquired about 

whether the parking area around the ball field provided ample parking space. Mr. Perez 

confirmed that there was ample parking.  

There were no further discussions.  

Deputy Director Esteves stated that the addendum has to be added to the contract to add the 

new lines. The agenda indicated New Business item (4) as a change order and item (5) as a 

contract amendment, but it should be a single board action.  

[069/22] Commissioner Ishizaki moved to approve the Change Order and Contract 

Amendment to contract GHURA;09-26-2019, CDBG funded, to Infratech International, 

LLC, to rehabilitate the Umatac Baseball Field in the amount of $8,000. Commissioner 

Sanchez seconded the motion. There were no objections by the other board members. 

The motion passed. 

5. Umatac Baseball Field Rehab. Project – Contract Amendment 

• [070/22] Item (5) was addressed in item (4) 

 

 

 

 

V.    EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

[071/22] Director Napoli stated that she would not be providing an Executive 

Director’s report. She deferred to Mr. Sonny Perez, AE Manager, to provide 

updates on the following projects: 

 



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 8 of 9 
 

1.  [072/22] Project Updates: 

• Women’s Treatment Center- H2 workers have arrived; sewer line was 

installed; concrete pour is scheduled; project completion is at 38%. After 

the pour, first half of concrete walls will be put up, bringing the project to 

be at around 45% complete by the end of the year. 

• Inarajan Basketball Court- JJ Global is tracking to be at 90% complete. 

Concrete pouring was on December 3 and curing time will take about a 

week. Painting of the court is scheduled to begin. Restroom facility and 

parts of the bleachers have been completed.  

 

2. [073/22] Division Updates- Director Napoli indicated that the Division 

updates will be presented at the next board meeting.  

                                   

                                                                                                

VI.      GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS   

1. [074/22] Director Napoli deferred to Dr. Bersamin for further discussion.  

 

Dr. Bersamin stated the following: 

Pursuant to Title 5GCA, the board needs to complete the Executive Management 6th 

month Performance Evaluations for:    

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli due on January 08, 2023 (Initial 

Evaluation) 

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves due on February 22, 2023 (Initial 

Evaluation) 

• She added that in 2019, the board voted to have each board member evaluate 

the Executive Director and Deputy Director separately and submit the 

completed evaluations to HR for tabulation and report back to the board. She 

stated that GHURA does have a draft policy in place that she will be working 

with legal counsel with to finalize the process and procedures on the 

executive management evaluation. Once completed, it will be presented 

before the board.  

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, January 10, 2023 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

  

 [075/22] Chairman Rivera indicated that Ms. Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant, 

will send out notices to commissioners via email regarding a consensus on the 

next scheduled board meeting date.  

    
 
 
 



GHURA BOC Meeting of December 16, 2022                                                                                           Page 9 of 9 
 

VII. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

[076/22] Commissioner Ishizaki motioned to move into Executive Session. 
Commissioner Sanchez seconded the motion. There were no objections. The 
motion passed.  

 
 
 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT  

          [077/22] Commissioner Sanchez motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Rice    
          seconded the motion. There were no objections. Motion passed to adjourn.  
 

 
 
 
 

      SEAL                                                                              

   

  

                                                                  

___________________________________________ 

                                                       Elizabeth F. Napoli 

                                             Board Secretary / Executive Director  

 



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 1 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 2 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 3 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 4 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 5 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 6 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 7 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 8 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 9 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 10 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 11 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 12 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 13 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 14 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 15 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 16 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 17 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 18 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 19 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 20 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 21 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 22 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 23 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 24 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 25 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 26 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 27 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 28 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 29 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 30 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 31 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 32 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 33 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 34 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 35 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 36 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 37 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 38 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 39 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 40 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 41 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 42 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 43 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 44 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 45 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 46 of 47



 
Board Meeting of January 24, 2023

 
PAGE 47 of 47




